
City of Riverton 
Regular Council Meeting 

Tuesday, February 7, 2023 at 7:00 pm 
Riverton City Hall Council Chambers

816 N Federal Blvd. 
Riverton, WY 82501 

      “Excellence in Service to the Rendezvous City” 

At 6:45 P.M. on Tuesday, February 7, 2023, the Finance Committee will meet in the City Hall Council 
Chambers to consider bills to be paid. This meeting is open to the public. 

1) Call to order.

2) Pledge of Allegiance.

3) Invocation.

4) Roll call: Mayor: Tim Hancock
Ward I: Kyle Larson, Dean Peranteaux  
Ward II: Karla Borders, Kristy K. Salisbury 
Ward III: Mike Bailey, Lindsey Cox  

5) Declaration of quorum.

6) Approval of the Agenda.

7) Communication from the Floor – Citizen’s Comments.

8) Consent Agenda:
• Approval of the Minutes – January 17, 2023 Regular Council Meeting.
• Approval of the Minutes – January 17, 2023 Executive Session.
• Approval of the Minutes – January 31, 2023 Special Council Meeting.
• Approval of the Minutes – January 31, 2023 Executive Session.
• Approval of the Minutes – February 7, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting.
• Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – February 7, 2023.
• Approval of the Municipal Court Report for the month of January 2023.

9) Wyoming Professional Water and Wastewater Operator’s Week Proclamation.

10) Consideration of Ordinance No. 23-001, 2nd Reading: Rezone Woodridge Estates.

11) Consideration of 2023 Airport Crack Seal Project Contract.

12) Resolution Nos. 1466 & 1467: Airport Improvement Program Grant Applications.

13) RAISE Grant Application.

14) Wastewater Treatment Plant Centrifuge Project.

15) Quarterly Fiscal Health Report.

Reports and Comments:
16) Council Committee Reports and Council Members’ Roundtable.
17) City Administrator’s Report.
18) Mayor’s Comments.
19) Executive Session – If needed.
20) Adjourn.



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 January 17, 2023 

RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 

Minutes of the 

Regular Council Meeting 

Held January 17, 2023 

7:00 PM 

The regular meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor Tim 

Hancock at 7:00 p.m.  City Council Members present were Karla Borders, Lindsey Cox, Mike Bailey, Dean 

Peranteaux, and Kyle Larson. Council Member Peranteaux led the pledge of allegiance; and Council Member Borders 

conducted the invocation. 

Roll call was conducted. Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Cox to excuse Council 

Member Kristy Salisbury from tonight’s meeting. Motion passed unanimously. Mayor Hancock declared a quorum of 

the Council.   

City Staff present: City Administrator Kyle J. Butterfield, City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson, 

Public Works Director Brian Eggleston, Interim Chief of Police Wesley Romero, Finance Director Mia Harris, 

Community Development Director Michael Miller, and Administrative Assistant Tisha Tuttle. 

Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve the 

agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously.  

Introduction and Oath of Office – Mayor and Council Members – Mayor Hancock introduced Council Member 

Dean Peranteaux who was elected to serve as Council Member in Ward I. Mayor Hancock conducted the Oath of 

Office for Council Member Peranteaux.  

Communication from the Floor/Response to Citizen’s Comments – Jackson Hill and Dani Santee, who were 

representing Riverton FFA, requested hanging FFA flags on Main Street, February 13 – February 24, 2023, in 

recognition of FFA week.  There was consensus from the Council to allow FFA flags to be flown, as requested.  

Riverton Senior Center representatives, Frank Tanner and Lori Weber, requested the City of Riverton’s support of 

their request to form a Senior Citizen Service District that will be presented to the County Commissioners for potential 

ballot language.  

Consent Agenda – City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson read the consent agenda items by title 

only: Approval of the Minutes – January 3, 2023 Regular Council Meeting; Approval of the Minutes – January 10, 

2023 Work Session Meeting; Approval of the Minutes – January 17, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting; approval of 

the Finance Committee Recommendations – January 17, 2023, claims to be paid in the amount of $342,697.79, Elan 

credit card in the amount of $1,924.99, payroll & liabilities for 12/30/22 in the amount of $370,611.36, for a total of 

$715,234.14; and approval of the Municipal Court report for the month of December.  Council Member Borders 

moved, seconded by Council Member Cox to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously, 

with Council Member Bailey abstaining from all Bailey Tire and Oil claims, and Council Member Peranteaux 

abstaining from all Wyonet and Traveling Computer claims.  

City Council Committee Appointments – Mayor Tim Hancock presented the letter of interest received from Ashley 

Strickland for appointment to the Riverton Rendezvous Board. Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council 

Member Bailey to approve the Mayoral appointment for the Riverton Rendezvous Committee. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

Consideration of Resolutions to Update Signatory Authority For Investment Funds – Finance Director Mia Harris 

presented the council with the three resolutions, which would update the signatories on the City’s investment funds. 

Resolution No. 1461 – Updating Signatory Authority: Wyoming CLASS; Resolution No. 1462 – Updating Signatory 

2



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 January 17, 2023 

Authority: WyoStar; and Resolution No. 1463 – Updating Signatory Authority: Wyoming Government Investment 

Fund. City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin Watson read Resolution No. 1461 by title only. Council Member 

Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Cox to approve Resolution No. 1461: Updating Signatory Authority 

for Wyoming CLASS. Motion passed unanimously. City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin Watson read 

Resolution No. 1462 by title only.  Council Member Bailey moved, seconded by Council Member Borders to approve 

Resolution No. 1462: Updating Signatory Authority for WyoStar Investment Pool. Motion passed unanimously. City 

Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin Watson read Resolution No. 1463 by title only. Council Member Larson 

moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve Resolution No. 1463: Updating Signatory Authority for 

Wyoming Government Investment Fund. Motion passed unanimously.  

Public Hearing & Consideration of Ordinance No. 23-001, 1st Reading: Rezone, Woodridge Estates – 

Community Development Director Michael Miller reported on the requested rezone of Woodridge Estates Block 1, 

Tract 1, from Planned Neighborhood Shopping District (C-P) to Commercial District (C-1). Council Member 

Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to open the public hearing. Motion passed unanimously. 

Being there no one to speak, Council Member Bailey moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to close the 

public hearing. Motion passed unanimously.  Council Member Bailey moved, seconded by Council Member 

Peranteaux to adopt on first reading Ordinance 23-001 Rezone of Woodbridge Estates Block 1, Tract 1 (Final Replat 

of Lots 3 & 4 and the vacation of platted easements with lots 10-15, block 16 and all of block 17). After some council 

discussion, motion passed with Mayor Hancock and Council Member(s) Borders, Cox, Bailey, and Peranteaux voting 

aye; and Council Member Larson voting nay.  

Consideration of Resolution No. 1464: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding – HVAC Units – Community 

Development Director Michael Miller reported on an application to the State Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) for 

an American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Local Government project grant monies to improve heating, ventilation, and 

cooling (HVAC) systems at City Hall and the airport terminal. City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin Watson 

read Resolution No. 1464 by title only. Council Member Cox moved, Council Member Peranteaux to approve 

Resolution No. 1464 supporting an application to the State Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) for an American Rescue 

Plan Act (ARPA). Motion passed unanimously.  

Consideration of Resolution No. 1465: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding – Storm Water – Public 

Works Director Brian Eggleston reported on an application to the State Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) for an 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) local government support grant for the purpose of Webbwood Road Storm Water 

Infrastructure Replacement Project. City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin Watson read Resolution No. 1465 

by title only.  Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve Resolution No. 1465 

supporting an application to the State Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) for an American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Council Committee Reports & Council Members’ Roundtable – Council Member(s) Borders, Cox, Bailey, 

Peranteaux, and Larson reported on the PAWS board meeting, the Fremont County School District #25 Recreation 

board meeting, thanked RPD for their swift action on their response during the incident last week, complimented staff 

on snow removal efforts, the upcoming Airport board meeting, and the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District 

board meeting, respectively.  

City Administrator’s Report – Mr. Butterfield reported that all financial disclosure statements have been received 

from Council and Staff, pursuant to Wyoming Statute, and the staff trainings.  Mr. Butterfield notified the Council and 

public of the upcoming board meetings for Airport and EDGE.  Mr. Butterfield expressed his appreciation to 

Administrative Assistant Tisha Tuttle for her service to the City of Riverton. Mr. Butterfield, along with Mayor Gard 

and Council Member Peranteaux will be attending the Winter WAM Workshop next week.  

3



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 January 17, 2023 

Mayor’s Comments – Mayor Hancock commended the Riverton Police Department for their service on a day to day 

basis; discussed the snow conversations with members of the public; and talked about homelessness and working with 

others for solutions to the issue.  

Executive Session – Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to convene into 

executive session at 8:22 p.m. for the purpose of personnel and potential litigation. Motion passed unanimously. Mayor 

Hancock invited City Administrator Kyle J. Butterfield, and City Clerk Kristin S. Watson, to attend the executive 

session. Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to reconvene into regular session 

at 9:58 p.m. Motion passed unanimously. 

Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Hancock adjourned the Regular Council 

meeting at 9:58 p.m. There was no objection from the Council. Motion passed unanimously.  

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

Tim Hancock 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

Kristin S. Watson 

City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

Publication Date: 

4



Special Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 1 January 31, 2023 

RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 

Minutes of the 

Special Council Meeting 

Held January 31, 2023 

2:00 PM 

The special meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor Tim 

Hancock at 2:00 p.m.  City Council Members present were Karla Borders, Lindsey Cox, Mike Bailey, Dean 

Peranteaux, Kyle Larson, and Kristy Salisbury. Council Member Peranteaux led the pledge of allegiance and Council 

Member Bailey conducted the invocation. 

Roll call was conducted. Mayor Hancock declared a quorum of the Council.   

City Staff present: City Administrator Kyle J. Butterfield and City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson. 

Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Cox to approve the agenda 

as presented. Motion passed unanimously.   

Executive Session – Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to convene into 

executive session at 2:02 p.m. for the purpose of personnel. Motion passed unanimously. Mayor Hancock invited City 

Clerk Kristin S. Watson to attend the executive session. Council Member Bailey moved, seconded by Council Member 

Peranteaux to reconvene into special session at 8:48 p.m. Motion passed unanimously. 

Action Items from Executive Session – Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey 

to direct staff to proceed with contract negotiations for the Chief of Police position. Motion passed unanimously. 

Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Hancock adjourned the Regular Council 

meeting at 8:50 p.m. There was no objection from the Council. Motion passed unanimously.  

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

Tim Hancock 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

Kristin S. Watson 

City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

Publication Date: 

5



RIVERTON MUNICIPAL COURT

REPORT

CASH RECEIPTING 

DECEMBER 30, 2022 THROUGH JANUARY 26, 2023

TOTAL DOCKETS FOR JANUARY 116
TOTAL ADMIN CREDIT TOTAL 

DATE RECVD FEES FINES COSTS CARD BOND VCF REST RECVD

12/30-1/5/23 3,225.75$        1,318.75$    30.00$      1,877.00$  3,225.75$   
1/6-1/12/23 3,134.00$        729.00$     660.00$       20.00$      725.00$     1,000.00$ 3,134.00$   
1/13-1/19/23 2,277.50$        982.50$       10.00$      885.00$     250.00$    150.00$ 2,277.50$   
1/20-1/26/23 2,405.75$        48.00$       1,215.75$    50.00$      607.00$     485.00$    2,405.75$   

SUB TOTAL 11,043.00$      777.00$     4,177.00$    110.00$    4,094.00$  1,735.00$ 150.00$ -$      11,043.00$ 

VCF 450.00$       $100 PD W CC 1/3, $100 PD W/ CC 1/5, $100 BOND APPLIED 1/10
REST 535.00$       $250 PD W/ CC 1/3, $10 PD W/ CC 1/13, $75 PD W/ CC 1/18/23, $200 BOND APPLIED 1/26
BOND M 1,735.00$        

OVER PAY
BCK GRNDS

E Shoshone 100.00$       

WRC 340.00$       

TOTAL 8,763.00$        

JUDGE MCKEE

EXCEL/CASHRECEIPTINGJOURNAL.XLS (SHEET 1)

6



City of Riverton 
816 N Federal Blvd | Riverton, WY 82501 | ph: 307.856.2227 |fax: 307.856.8270 

riverton@rivertonwy.gov | www.rivertonwy.gov  
 

W Y O M I N G  P R O F E S S I O N A L  
W A T E R  A N D  W A S T E W A T E R  

O P E R A T O R  W E E K  

P R O C L A M A T I O N  
 

 

Whereas, Wyoming’s certified drinking water treatment, drinking water distribution, and wastewater collection and 

wastewater treatment operators are professionals that perform a vital service for our state; and 
 

Whereas, Wyoming’s professional operators protect public health by removing contaminants from our drinking 

water, delivering safe drinking water to our taps, efficiently delivering wastewater to treatment facilities, and 

correctly treating wastewater; and 
 

Whereas, Wyoming’s professional operators preserve high quality of Wyoming’s lakes, rivers, and streams by 

ensuring the proper treatment of wastewater; and 
 

Whereas, Wyoming’s professional operators properly operate and maintain water and wastewater equipment and 

facilities, ensuring the longevity of one of the states’ largest infrastructure investments; and 
 

Whereas, clean, safe drinking water and our pristine natural environment is central to our quality of life and 

Wyoming’s future; and 
 

Whereas, it is fitting to recognize and honor the work of professional operators in protecting the public’s health, our 

environment and water resources, and the water and wastewater infrastructure of Wyoming;  
 

Now, Therefore, I, Tim Hancock, Mayor of the City of Riverton, do proclaim the week of February 6 – 12, 2023, as: 

Wyoming Professional Water and Wastewater Operator Week 

and further extend appreciation to the professional Water and Wastewater Operators employed by the City of 

Riverton for the vital services they perform and their exemplary dedication to the City of Riverton. 

 
Dated this 7th day of February, 2023 
 

____________________________________ 
Tim Hancock, Mayor     

   
 
Attest: ____________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson, City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

7

mailto:riverton@rivertonwy.gov
http://www.rivertonwy.gov/


CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
TO: His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Miller – Director of Community Development 

THROUGH: Kyle Butterfield – City Administrator 

DATE: February 7th, 2023 

SUBJECT: Rezone Woodbridge Estates Block 1, Tract 1 (Final Replat of Lots 3 & 4 and 
the vacation of platted easements with lots 10-15, block 16 and all of block 
17) 

PETITIONERS:   HAAN Development 

Recommendation:   The City Council approve on second reading Ordinance 23-001 Rezone 
of Woodbridge Estates Block 1, Tract 1 (Final Replat of Lots 3 & 4 and the vacation of 
platted easements with lots 10-15, block 16 and all of block 17) 

Alternatives: 

Background:  Woodbridge Estates Block 1, Tract 1 is a corner lot at the intersections of 
Pure Gas Road and Webbwood Road. The lot is located on the north side of a majority 
residential subdivision. The lots to the north of this lot, across Webbwood are 
designated as Heavy Industrial (“I-2”) and Agriculture (“AG”). The lot is currently zoned as a 
Planning Neighborhood Shopping District (“C-P”) and the petitioners are requesting to rezone 
this lot to a Commercial District (“C-1”). 

Discussion: HAAN Development is requesting this change to allow them to create 
commercial office spaces with garages. The current use regulations for C-P zoning could be 
restricting. The petitioner plans to build commercial offices spaces and garages for businesses 
or individuals to rent. C-1 zoning offers more flexibility to the type of businesses that can 
rent and utilize the commercial spaces available.  

The City Planning Commission Recommended Certification on January 5th, 2023.

City Council approved Ordinance No. 23-001 on first reading at the January 17th, 2023 regular 
meeting

• Approve with amendments or stipulations.
• Not Approve the rezone

Budget Impact:  There is no immediate budget impact resulting from the staff recommendation.  

8



Mailing Address: PO 556 Harbor Springs, MI 49740 
Physical Address: 380 Franklin Street, Harbor Springs, MI 49740 

haandev.com 

November 9, 2022 

City of Riverton – Community Development 
ATTN: Michael Miller Community Development Director 
816 N. Federal Blvd  
Riverton, WY 82501 

RE: Petition for Zone Request 
3.09-acres Southeast Corner Pure Gas Road & Webbwood Road (Parcel ID – 91142624000100) 

Dear Mr. Miller, 

This letter is a request of petition for zone request for the 3.09-acre property located on the Southeast Corner 
of Pure Gas Road and Webbwood Road with Parcel ID 91142624000100. The request is submitted by G.A. 
Haan Development, L.L.C. for the landowner, Phoenix Holding Group, L.L.C. The legal description of the 
Property is –  

WOODRIDGE ESTATES BLOCK 1 TRACT 1 (FINAL PLAT REPLAT OF LOTS 3 & 4 AND THE 
VACATION OF PLATTED EASEMENTS WITH LOTS 10-15, BLOCK 16 AND ALL OF BLOCK 17) 

PLAT 2010-1332955 

The Property is currently zoned Planned Commercial Shopping District (C-P). The Petition for Zone 
Request proposes a new designation of Commercial General (C-1).  

Need for Such Zone Change Designation 
The landowner intends to develop a commercial building offering 3 to 5 rental units 800 to 1,200 square 
feet each. Each rentable unit is envisioned to offer an office area with an attached garage space. Intended 
tenants may range from a construction trade looking for small office space and storage capacity or 
individuals looking for additional storage capacity for personal items in addition to a small office space to 
work from. Per the City of Riverton Community Development Department, a use such as the proposed fits 
more accurately under the C-1 Zoning District.  

Impact of Surrounding Areas 
The Property is neighbored to the North by Webbwood Road, undeveloped property zoned Commercial 
and Agricultural, and developed Industrial Zoned property serving as gas storage. To the East by 
undeveloped R-2 zoned property. To the South by undeveloped Agricultural Land followed by Riverton 
Woodridge Apartments. To the West by undeveloped R-2 property, Pure Gas Road, and Industrial uses. 
The proposed use will have no additional impact on surrounding uses than current uses allowed within the 
existing C-P designation.  

Distance to Services 
Our property is within a short distance of the following business and employment centers: 

1. Downtown District     1.3 Miles 
2. SageWest Health Care Campus    2.9 Miles 
3. Walmart Super Center (Other Commercial)  0.5 Miles 
4. Holiday Inn Convention Center    0.8 Miles 
5. Riverton Chamber of Commerce   1.9 Miles 
6. Riverton High School & Middle School   2.8 Miles 

9



Mailing Address: PO 556 Harbor Springs, MI 49740 
Physical Address: 380 Franklin Street, Harbor Springs, MI 49740 

haandev.com 

7. Riverton City Park 1.3 Miles 
8. Riverton Aquatic Center 2.8 Miles 
9. Riverton Public Library 2.9 Miles 
10. Smart Start Quality Child Care 1.8 Miles 

Access to Area / Traffic Patterns 
Access to the Property from U.S. Highway 26 (Federal Blvd) is provided by E Webbwood Road and Pure 
Gas Road.  

Accessibility to Utilities 
Currently, all utilities are available at the site. An 8” sewer line is located within a drainage and utility 
easement on the west end of the Property.  Water is accessible across Webbwood Road or to the South Side 
of the Site at the intersection of Redwood Drive and Pinecrest Drive that could be brought to the Site.  

Impact on City Facilities 

Water, Sewer, & Sanitation: It is understood the City facilities in the area are able to serve the proposed use 
and are adequate to serve the current uses allowed with the existing C-P designation. A significant 
investment is not anticipated if the requested zone change were approved.  

Emergency Services: The Property is located less than 1 mile from the Riverton City Police Department 
and less than 2.5 miles from the Riverton Fire Department. The proposed zoning designation change and 
the proposed use will not increase required emergency services above the current uses allowed with the 
existing C-P designation. A significant investment is not anticipated if the requested zone change were 
approved. 

Traffic: As noted above, the Property is located along Webbwood Road, and access to the Property will 
continue to be from E Webbwood Road and Pure Gas Road. Both Roads are sufficient to serve the proposed 
use. A significant investment is not anticipated if the requested zone change were approved. 

Parks: A significant investment is not anticipated if the requested zone change were approved. 

Schools: A significant investment is not anticipated if the requested zone change were approved. 

Provided the minimal impact, if any, this requested zone change will prompt it is requested no Impact 
Study be required and the provided information within this letter serve as documentation addressing 
any such impact. Please find enclosed within this letter 1) Completed Petition for Zone Request Form 
executed by the Landowner; 2) Applicable Fees; 3) Copy of Woodridge Estates Plat showing site 
location; 4) Copy of Deed. Should you have any questions, or require additional information, please don’t 
hesitate to contact me by phone or email at. (231) 838-0563 or andrew@haandev.com. 

Regards, 

Andrew Schorfhaar 
Haan Development 

10



11



12



13



14



Fremont County Wyoming MapServer

Fremont County provides this map for display
purposes only and invokes its sovereign and
governmental immunity in allowing access to or use
of this data, and makes no warranties as to the
validity, and assumes no liability associated with the
use or misuse of this information.

printed 11/9/2022

500 ft

15



16



PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 23-001 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERTON, WYOMING, DESIGNATING THE REZONE OF WOODRIDGE 
ESTATES BLOCK 1, TRACT 1 (FINAL PLAT REPLAT OF LOTS 3 & 4 AND THE 
VACATION OF PLATTED EASEMENTS WITH LOTS 10-15, BLOCK 16, AND 
ALL OF BLOCK 17), CITY OF RIVERTON, FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING, 
FROM PLANNED NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING DISTRICT C-P TO 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT C-1.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF RIVERTON, FREMONT 
COUNTY, WYOMING: 

Section 1. The following described property; having been the subject of a public hearing with proper 
notices should be and is zoned COMMERCIAL DISTRICT C-1 

WOODRIDGE ESTATES BLOCK 1, TRACT 1 (FINAL PLAT REPLAT OF LOTS 3 & 4 
AND THE VACATION OF PLATTED EASEMENTS WITH LOTS 10-15, BLOCK 16, 
AND ALL OF BLOCK 17), CITY OF RIVERTON, FREMONT COUNTY 

Section 2.  That certain map, entitled “OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, CITY OF RIVERTON, 
WYOMING,” as endorsed by the City Engineer of the City of Riverton, Wyoming, and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Riverton, Wyoming, on January 6, 2008, together 
with such amendments and additions as have been approved by the City Council, is amended 
to reflect the zoning change of said parcel. 

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such conflict. 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall take effect from its adoption and publication as required by law and the 
ordinances of the City of Riverton. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING                  January 17th, 2023

PASSED ON SECOND READING 

PASSED ON THIRD READING 

        PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _______ day of _________________ 2023. 

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

By:___________________________  
Tim Hancock 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

ATTESTATION 

I, Kristin S. Watson, Clerk of the City of Riverton, attest that Ordinance No. 23-001 was passed, 
adopted, and approved by the Governing Body of the City of Riverton on the _____ day of 
_______ , 2023.  I further certify that the above proclamation ran at least once in the Riverton 
Ranger, a newspaper of general circulation within Riverton, Wyoming, the effective date of 
publication, and therefore the effective date of enactment being ______________________. 

____________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

17



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Kyle J. Butterfield, City Administrator 
 
DATE:  February 7, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: 2023 Airport Crack Seal Project Contract 
 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council approves the Contract between the Wyoming Department of 
Transportation (WYDOT) and Central Wyoming Regional Airport (RIW) for the 2023 Airport Crack Seal 
Project and provides signatory authority to the City Administrator. 

Background:  Maintaining pavements at RIW is a critical component to the safe operation of commercial 
and general aviation flights to and from Fremont County, Wyoming.  As pavements age, they oxidize, 
crack, and degrade.  In order to maintain pavements and best preserve the financial investment associated 
with them, it is important to engage in pavement preservation techniques.  One technique commonly used 
is crack filling and sealing.    

Discussion:  The WYDOT Aeronautics Division understands the importance of pavement preservation 
efforts to ensure the safe operation of flights and to prolong the financial investment associated with 
pavement infrastructure.  To that end, they offer a crack sealing program in which airports are able to 
participate.  WYDOT secures a contractor each year to visit the various airport regions of the state.  They 
will be working in the region of RIW in 2023.  To participate in the program, the city needs to execute a 
contract and provide a 20% match to the total cost of the crack sealing performed at the airport.    

Budget Impact:  The tables below outlines the cost of the crack sealing project and the city’s matching 
requirement. 
 

PROJECT NAME LOCAL FUNDS STATE FUNDS TOTAL 
2023 CRACK SEAL PROJECT $27,647.18 $110,588.71 $138,235.89 

 
 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



Exhibit B

October 17, 2022

AGMP35B - 2023

UNIT
quantity unit 

price amount

Crack Surfacing (Plant Mix) CF 0 $0.00 

Spall Repair SF 0 $0.00 

Sealing Cracks (Conc Pvmt) FT 0 $0.00 

Sealing Joints (Conc Pvmt) FT 7,100 $2.00 $14,200.00 

Sealing Joints (Compression Seal ‐ Conc Pvmt) FT 0 $0.00 

Crack Seal (Plant Mix) FT 90,000 $1.05 $94,500.00 

Hot Pour Pay Adjustment $0.05 $4,855.00 

PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE TOTAL $113,555.00 

Percent of Project 16.15%

Force Account LS
Mobilization (based on % project) $$ $12,113.99 

+10% (work + mob) Buffer $12,566.90 

GRAND TOTAL $138,235.89 

GRAND TOTAL AIRPORT 20% $27,647.18

GRAND TOTAL WYDOT 80% $110,588.71

Riverton (Fremont)

ESTIMATED COST FOR STATEWIDE AIRPORT CRACK SEALING BY AIRPORT

27



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Kyle J. Butterfield, City Administrator 
 
DATE:  February 7, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Resolutions No. 1466 & 1467 – Airport Grant Applications 
 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council approves Resolutions No. 1466 and 1467 supporting the 
application of grants AIP 3-56-0024-054 and AIP 3-56-0024-056 and their associated WYDOT grants. 

Background:  As a commercial passenger airport, Central Wyoming Regional Airport (RIW) operates 
under a Part 139 certificate with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA).  This certificate requires 
RIW to meet a number operational and safety standards to protect individuals utilizing the airfield.  The 
FAA inspects RIW each year to verify it complies with these standards   

To ensure airports maintain the standards required by the Part 139 operating certificate, both the State of 
Wyoming and the FAA provide financial support for capital purchases and projects.  Through the Airport 
Improvement Program (AIP), the FAA supports 93.75% of improvement costs.  The State of Wyoming 
matches federal AIP grants at 3.75% of improvement costs.  The Wyoming Aviation Capital 
Improvement Program (WACIP) prioritizes projects that are eligible for federal and state funding.   

Discussion:  Pursuant to the WACIP, RIW is eligible for several grants in the upcoming fiscal year from 
the FAA and State of Wyoming.  The first grant supports the Taxiways A, D, and C1 Reconstruction 
project, that was awarded to Simon Construction on October 18, 2023.  Bids for the project exceeded the 
grant allocation previously applied for and received from the FAA.  Resolution No. 1466 supports an 
application to the FAA for an additional $1,482,850 for the project, which would draw upon Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law monies.   

The second grant supports the procurement of a new loader and snow blower for the airport.  Existing 
equipment at the airport is a cab-over-blade snow blower and is frequently down for repairs.  Parts for the 
unit are difficult to acquire and it is becoming very challenging to keep it in service.  Moreover, the 
blower was involved in a collision approximately five years ago and has not efficiently operated since that 
time.  Resolution 1467 supports the replacement of this equipment with a loader and blower, which has 
been programed on the WACIP for several years. 

Budget Impact:  The tables below outline each project, their funding sources, and matching 
requirements. 
 

TAXIWAY 
RECONSTRUCTION 

FEDERAL 
FUNDS 

STATE 
FUNDS 

LOCAL 
FUNDS TOTAL 

AIP 53 ENTITLEMENT $1,992,118.00 $79,684.00 $53,124.00 $2,124,926.00 
AIP 54 BIPARTISAN INF. $1,482,850.00 $59,314.00 $39,543.00 $1,581,707.00 
AIP 55 SUPPLEMENTAL $3,428,266.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,428,266.00 

28



SRE LOADER & 
BLOWER 

FEDERAL 
FUNDS 

STATE 
FUNDS 

LOCAL 
FUNDS TOTAL 

AIP 56 ENTITLEMENT $1,000,000.00 $40,000.00 $26,667.00 $1,066,667.00 
 
 

 

29



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1466 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERTON SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION OF AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GRANT NO. 3-56-0024-054 FROM THE 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION AND ITS CORRESPONDING 
GRANT FROM THE AERONAUTICS DIVISION OF THE WYOMING 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Riverton is responsible for the operation of 
Central Wyoming Regional Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, sections of pavement associated with Taxiway A, Taxiway D, and Taxiway C1 at 
Central Wyoming Regional Airport are in states of disrepair and require rehabilitation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Wyoming Aviation Capital Improvement Program has prioritized this 
rehabilitation; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration provides financial support to airports for capital 
improvements through the Airport Improvement Program; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERTON, WYOMING that a grant application be submitted to the Federal Aviation 
Administration and the Aeronautics Division of the Wyoming Department of Transportation to 
improve Taxiway A, Taxiway D, and Taxiway C1. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Administrator, Airport Division Manager, and Finance 
Director are hereby designated as authorized representatives and signatories of the City of Riverton 
on all matters relating to this grant. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Riverton, 
Wyoming, this 7th day of February, 2023. 
 
 

  CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 
 
 
        
  Tim Hancock 
  Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

30



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1467 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERTON SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION OF AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GRANT NO. 3-56-0024-056 FROM THE 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION AND ITS CORRESPONDING 
GRANT FROM THE AERONAUTICS DIVISION OF THE WYOMING 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Riverton is responsible for the operation of 
Central Wyoming Regional Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing cab-over-blade snow blower at the airport is frequently down for repairs 
and has reached the end of its minimum useful life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Wyoming Aviation Capital Improvement Program has prioritized the 
replacement of the existing cab-over-blade snow blower unit with a loader and snow blower 
attachment; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration provides financial support to airports for capital 
improvements through the Airport Improvement Program; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERTON, WYOMING that a grant application be submitted to the Federal Aviation 
Administration and the Aeronautics Division of the Wyoming Department of Transportation to 
replace the existing snow blower unit at Central Wyoming Regional Airport with a new loader and 
snow blower attachment. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Administrator, Airport Division Manager, and Finance 
Director are hereby designated as authorized representatives and signatories of the City of Riverton 
on all matters relating to this grant. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Riverton, 
Wyoming, this 7th day of February, 2023. 
 
 

  CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 
 
 
        
  Tim Hancock 
  Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

31



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Brian Eggleston, Public Work Director  
 
THROUGH:  Kyle Butterfield, City Administrator 
 
DATE:   February 7, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  RAISE (Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity) grant. 
 

 
  
Recommendation:  The City Council authorizes the Public Works Director to submit a grant application 
to the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and 
Equity (RAISE) Program to improve Airport Road.    
  
Background:  Congress passed the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), also known as the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act, on November 15, 2021.  BIL provides $550 billion in new investments for 
transportation, water, power and energy, environmental remediation, public lands, broadband and other 
public works improvements over a five year period from FY22 through FY26.  The $550 billion is broken 
into two categories: $284 billion to improve transportation networks and $266 billion to enhance core 
infrastructure.  Specifically, funding categories related to BIL are referenced below.  These dollars are being 
made available across dozens of new and existing programs.  
  
 Roads & Bridges: $110 billion  Reconnecting Communities: $1 billion  
 Transit: $39 billion  Water: $55 billion  
 Rail: $66 billion  Broadband: $65 billion  
 Safety: $11 billion  Energy & Power: $73 billion  

Airports: $25 billion     Environmental Remediation: $21 billion 
Ports & Waterways: $17 billion   Western Water Infrastructure: $8.3 billion  
Electric Vehicle Charging: $7.5 billion  Resiliency: $46 billion  

 Electric Buses: $7.5 billion    
  
Discussion:  The U.S. Department of Transportation has published a Notice of Funding Opportunity 
(NOFO) for $1.5 billion in grant funding through the RAISE discretionary grant program.  RAISE 
discretionary grants, which were originally created under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act as 
TIGER grants, are intended to assist communities around the country carry out projects with significant 
local or regional impacts.  The advertised NOFO is the second round of funding through the  Department 

32



of Transportation discretionary funding program associated with BIL.  The $1.5 billion in available funding 
represents the available funds for FY23. 
   
RAISE projects are rigorously reviewed and selected based on merit. Projects will be evaluated on statutory 
criteria of safety, environmental sustainability, quality of life, economic competitiveness and opportunity.  
Under the BIL, 2023 RAISE applications will also be evaluated on the criteria of mobility and community 
connectivity. The Department of Transportation will further assess projects for universal design and 
accessibility for travelers and also consider how proposals increase mobility for freight and supply chain 
efficiency. At least $15 million in funding from the NOFO is guaranteed to go towards projects located in 
areas of persistent poverty or historically disadvantaged communities.  
  
Airport Road previously served as the state highway moving west of town and is currently one of the oldest 
existing roads in Riverton’s network.  Its pavement is aged, distressed, and requires reinvestment.  
Moreover, its alignment would benefit from a wider profile.  For these reasons, the Urban System 
Committee and the Fix Our Roads Citizen Committee have discussed on multiple occasions the need to 
reconstruct Airport Road.  The Urbans Systems Committee has specifically listed it as one of its top three 
prioritized projects for future funding.  
  
RAISE projects are broken into two categories: Urban and Rural.  Urban projects are for populations greater 
than 200,000 and have minimum project award of $5 million.  Rural projects are for smaller populations 
and have a minimum project award of $1 million.  BIL dictates that no more than 15 percent of funds ($225 
million) be made available for projects in a single state.  Furthermore, BIL directs that 50 percent of funds 
shall be equally made available to rural and urban projects ($750 million each).  FY23 grant funds are 
available for obligation through FY 27, and must be expended by September 30, 2032.  Applications related 
to the current NOFO are due February 28, 2023  
  
Budget Impact:  RAISE projects are typically made available at a matching ratio of 80:20.  However, 
projects designated as rural do not require a minimum matching component. Although no match 
requirement is required for areas designated as rural, all applicants, including those requesting 100 
percent grant funding, should describe a plan to address potential cost overruns. In this case, 
coordination with FORCC, and the Urban Systems Committee would be very important to insure 
funding would be ear marked as a contingency for potential cost overruns. This planning would be 
accomplished if the RAISE grant is awarded.   

 
The Engineers Estimate for the project including a 10% contingency is $5,685,566.00. While performing 
the construction, 1800 linear feet of 8” water line would need to be replaced, at an estimated cost of 
$216,000.00. The water line portion of the project is ineligible for grant funding in this project and would 
have to be absorbed with City of Riverton funding. The total estimate, including water line replacement 
would be $5,901,566.00.  
  
  

  
  

33



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Brian Eggleston, Public Work Director  
 
THROUGH:  Kyle J.  Butterfield, City Administrator 
 
DATE:   February 7, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Wastewater Treatment Plant Centrifuge Project. 

 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council authorizes a change in the FY23 Waste Water Treatment Plant, 
Capital Budget, removing the Fuel Tank Capital Project, and shifting the allocated monies to the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, Capital Facility line item for emergency repairs on the centrifuge system. 
  
Background:  During the preparation and adoption of the 2022-2023 budget, the Riverton City Council 
authorized the replacement of the problematic underground fuel tank at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, 
with an aboveground fuel tank. $66,500.00 was approved in the budget for the project. 
  
Discussion:  On Friday, January 27, 2023, the variable frequency drive (VFD) controller at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant quit working. The VFD controls the centrifuge, for dewatering operations at the plant. The 
internal centrifuge components of the 14 year old unit, require replacement, but parts are 4 months out. 
However with replacing the VFD, the system can be returned to service for now. 
 
In order to bring the centrifuge back online, a new VFD replacement is needed immediately, and subsequent 
necessary upgrades will be completed once the new parts arrive. Although the fuel tank replacement is 
necessary, it is doubtful that the project could be completed during FY23, primarily due to a lack of response 
from potential vendors, initially,  and discussion about the feasibility of, and requirements for abandoning 
the old fuel tank in place.    
   
Budget Impact: $66,500.00 dollars was approved in the FY23 Capital Budget for the Fuel Tank 
Replacement Project. The repairs for the centrifuge including parts is $57,243.89 to get the system back 
online, or $9,256.11 under the budgeted amount. 

34



Revenues Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Local Revenues 951,000$                    461,570$                  (489,430)$                    49%

Licenses & Permits 960,100$                    450,771$                  (509,329)$                    47%

Intergovernmental Revenues 5,739,250$                 2,847,659$              (2,891,591)$                 50%

Fines & Forfeitures 125,000$                    58,869$                    (66,131)$                       47%

Miscellaneous Revenue 49,000$                      84,228$                    35,228$                        172%

Transfers 1,031,535$                 -$                          (1,031,535)$                 0%

Enterprise Operating Revenue 25,000$                      -$                          (25,000)$                       0%

Total Revenues 8,880,885$                 3,903,098$              (4,977,787)$                 44%

Expenses Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Mayor & Council 119,414$                    68,969$                    50,445$                        58%

Community Services 270,500$                    147,000$                  123,500$                      54%

City Administrator 213,801$                    117,832$                  95,969$                        55%

Municipal Court 414,214$                    200,474$                  213,740$                      48%

Administrative Services 518,354$                    322,437$                  195,917$                      62%

Information Technology 356,797$                    176,579$                  180,218$                      49%

Capital Outlay 1,559,805$                 1,076,560$              483,245$                      69%

Facility Maintenance 487,938$                    246,588$                  241,350$                      51%

Law Enforcement 3,488,028$                 1,696,937$              1,791,091$                   49%

Victim Witness Services 259,875$                    56,869$                    203,006$                      22%

Fireman Pension 7,650$                         3,113$                      4,538$                          41%

Public Works 125,153$                    39,068$                    86,085$                        31%

Streets & Alleys 822,804$                    369,253$                  453,551$                      45%

Fleet Maintenance 291,546$                    140,797$                  150,749$                      48%

Weed & Pest 113,342$                    76,080$                    37,262$                        67%

Parks 544,692$                    235,977$                  308,715$                      43%

Community Development 408,773$                    218,842$                  189,931$                      54%

Administrative Allocations (1,425,873)$                (703,469)$                (722,404)$                    49%

Debt Service 85,850$                      85,845$                    5$                                  -

Operating Transfers 24,000$                      -$                          24,000$                        0%

Transfer for Airport Subsidy 194,222$                    -$                          194,222$                      0%

Total Expenses 8,880,885$                 4,575,751$              4,305,134$                  52%

Difference (672,653)$                

Fiscal Year Summary Report

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

General Fund

12%

12%

73%

1%
2%

0%
0%

Local Revenues

Licenses & Permits

Intergovernmental
Revenues

Fines & Forfeitures

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers

Enterprise Operating
Revenue

1%

2%

2%

3%

5%

3%

18%

4%

28%

1%

0%

1%

6%

2%

1%
4%

4%

-12%

1%
0% 0% Mayor & Council

Community Services

City Administrator

Municipal Court

Administrative Services

Information Technology

Capital Outlay

Facility Maintenance

Law Enforcement

Victim Witness Services

Fireman Pension

Public Works

Streets & Alleys

Fleet Maintenance

Weed & Pest

Parks

Community Development

Administrative Allocations

Debt Service

Operating Transfers

Transfer for Airport Subsidy

35



Revenues Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Intergovernmental Revenues -$                             -$                     -$                      0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 8,000$                         17,850$              9,850$                 223%

Transfers 319,065$                    -$                     (319,065)$            0%

Enterprise Operating Revenue 2,807,500$                 1,650,115$         (1,157,385)$        59%

Total Revenues 3,134,565$                 1,667,965$        (1,466,600)$        53%

Expenses Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Capital Outlay 344,489$                    84,656$              259,834$             25%

Debt Service 297,669$                    304,431$            (6,762)$                102%

Customer Service 120,384$                    66,659$              53,725$               55%

Water Production 1,208,707$                 561,708$            646,999$             46%

Water Distribution 395,340$                    197,379$            197,961$             50%

Water Administration 767,976$                    394,338$            373,638$             51%

Total Expenses 3,134,565$                 1,609,171$        1,525,394$         51%

Difference 58,794$              

Fiscal Year Summary Report

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Water Fund

0% 1%0%

99%

Intergovernmental
Revenues

Miscellaneous
Revenue

Transfers

Enterprise Operating
Revenue

5%

19%

4%

$561,708 , 35%

12%

25%

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Customer Service

Water Production

Water Distribution

Water Administration

36



Revenues Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Intergovernmental Revenues -                               -                       -                        0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 22,000                         23,850                1,850                    108%

Transfers 694,420                       -                       (694,420)              0%

Enterprise Operating Revenue 2,454,000                   1,279,605           (1,174,395)           52%

3,170,420                   1,303,455           (1,866,965)           41%

Expenses Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Capital Outlay 965,989                       156,840              809,149                16%

Debt Service 65,400                         34,239                31,161                  52%

Customer Service 120,387                       65,081                55,306                  54%

Wastewater Treatment 913,246                       436,454              476,792                48%

Wastewater Collection 377,491                       173,987              203,504                46%

Wastwater Administration 727,907                       373,110              354,797                51%

Total Expenses 3,170,420                   1,239,712           1,930,708            39%

Difference 63,744                

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Wastewater Fund

Fiscal Year Summary Report

0%

Intergovernmental
Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers

Enterprise Operating
Revenue

13%
3%

5%

35%14%

30% Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Customer Service

Wastewater Treatment

Wastewater Collection

Wastwater Administration

37



Revenues Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Intergovernmental Revenues -$                             -$                       -$                      0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 3,000$                         12,925$                9,925$                  431%

Transfers 675,160$                    -$                       (675,160)$            0%

Enterprise Operating Revenue 2,343,000$                 1,237,902$           (1,105,098)$         53%

Total Revenues 3,021,160$                 1,250,827$           (1,770,333)$        41%

Expenses Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Capital Outlay 649,913$                    79,115$                570,798$             12%

Customer Service 119,622$                    65,107$                54,515$                54%

Sanitation Operations 1,235,633$                 572,384$              663,249$             46%

Sanitation Administration 662,487$                    311,630$              350,857$             47%

Tub Grinder Operations 268,336$                    135,777$              132,559$             51%

Curbside Recycle 85,169$                       44,506$                40,663$                52%

Total Expenses 3,021,160$                 1,208,520$           1,812,640$          40%

Difference 42,307$                

Fiscal Year Summary Report

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Sanitation Fund

Intergovernmental
Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers

Enterprise Operating
Revenue

7%

5%

47%

26%

11%

4%

Capital Outlay

Customer Service

Sanitation Operations

Sanitation Administration

Tub Grinder Operations

Curbside Recycle

38



Revenues Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Local Revenues 55,000$                      22,493$              32,507$               41%

Intergovernmental Revenues 6,398,000$                 529,988$            5,868,012$          8%

Miscellaneous Revenue 6,800$                        145,633$            (138,833)$            2142%

Enterprise Operating Revenue 189,500$                    104,316$            85,184$               55%

Transfer from Cash 237,377$                    -$                    237,377$             0%

Total Revenues 6,886,677$                802,430$           6,084,247$         12%

Expenses Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Capital Outlay 6,242,000$                 308,579$            5,933,421$          5%

Debt Service 30,091$                      -$                    30,091$               0%

Airport Operations 581,086$                    276,364$            304,722$             48%

Terminal Building 28,000$                      25,250$              2,750$                 90%

DCI Building 5,500$                        2,204$                3,296$                 40%

Total Expenses 6,886,677$                612,396$           6,274,281$         9%

Difference 190,034$           

Fiscal Year Summary Report

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Airport Fund

3%

66%

18%

13%

0%

Local Revenues

Intergovernmental
Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenue

Enterprise Operating
Revenue

Transfer from Cash

51%

0%

45%

4%

0%

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Airport Operations

Terminal Building

DCI Building

39



Revenues Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

1/2% Economic Development Tax 700,000$                    377,968$              (322,032)$                     54%

Miscellaneous Revenue -$                             1,394$                  1,394$                           -

FAST Program Revenue 330,778$                    140,000$              (190,778)$                     42%

Airport State Marketing Grant 50,000$                      40,000$                (10,000)$                        0%

Joint Marketing Revenue 20,000$                      7,000$                  (13,000)$                        0%

Transfer from Cash 30,000$                      -$                      (30,000)$                        0%

Transfer from General Fund 194,222.00$               -$                      (194,222.00)$                0%

Total Revenues 1,325,000$                 566,361$             (758,639)$                     43%

Expenses Projected Actual Difference ($) (%)

Airline Revenue Guarantee-Grant 1,225,000$                 47,539$                1,177,461$                    4%

Airport Marketing 100,000$                    58,047$                41,953$                         58%

Total Expenses 1,325,000$                 105,586$             1,219,414$                   8%

Difference 460,775$             

Fiscal Year Summary Report

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

Airline Minimum Revenue Guarantee

67%
0%

25%

7%
1%0%

1/2% Economic
Development Tax

Miscellaneous Revenue

FAST Program Revenue

Airport State Marketing
Grant

45%

55%

Airline Revenue Guarantee-
Grant

Airport Marketing

40



Fund Revenue Expenses Difference

General Fund 3,903,098$                 4,575,751$                 (672,653)$                   

Water Fund 1,667,965$                 1,609,171$                 58,794$                       

Wastewater Fund 1,303,455$                 1,239,712$                 63,744$                       

Sanitation Fund 1,250,827$                 1,208,520$                 42,307$                       

Airport Fund 802,430$                     612,396$                     190,034$                     

Airline Minimum Revenue Guarantee 566,361$                     105,586$                     460,775$                     

9,494,136$                 9,351,136$                 143,000$                    

Fiscal Year Summary Report

July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

41


	1 02-07-23 Regular Council Meeting
	1) Call to order.
	2) Pledge of Allegiance.
	3) Invocation.
	4) Roll call: Mayor: Tim Hancock
	Ward I: Kyle Larson, Dean Peranteaux
	Ward II: Karla Borders, Kristy K. Salisbury
	Ward III: Mike Bailey, Lindsey Cox

	8.1 01-17-2023 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	8.2 01-31-2023 Special Council Meeting Minutes
	8.3 Copy of CASH RECEIPTING JANUARY_2023
	8.4 Water Wastewater Operators Week
	9 23-001 Rezone Woodbrige Estates Packet
	Memo -23-001 Woodbrige Rezone
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	2023-01-05 Packet.pdf
	RC Rezone Application (FINAL) 2022-11-09

	2023-01-05 Packet.pdf
	FremontCountyMap

	3767_001.pdf
	23-001 Rezone Woodbridge Estates

	10 2023_2.7_State Crack Seal Project Agreement
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	11 2023_2.7_Airport Grant Reslutions
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	12 2023_2.7_Bipartisan Infrastructure Law - Airport Road RAISE Application
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:   His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council

	Roads & Bridges: $110 billion  Reconnecting Communities: $1 billion
	Airports: $25 billion     Environmental Remediation: $21 billion
	Ports & Waterways: $17 billion   Western Water Infrastructure: $8.3 billion
	Electric Vehicle Charging: $7.5 billion  Resiliency: $46 billion

	14 2023_2.7_Wastewater Treatment Plant Centrifuge Project_FINAL
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:   His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	15 Operational Financial Summaries through December 31, 2022



